
NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-
mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be 
made to make reasonable accommodations. 

 

 BUILDING CODE 

BOARD OF APPEALS 

 REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

Theodore Dziurman, Chair; Gary Abitheira 
Teresa Brooks, Michael Carolan, Brian Kischnick 

   

May 7, 2014 3:00 PM LOWER LEVEL 
  CONFERENCE ROOM 
   

 
1. ROLL CALL 

 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – March 5, 2014 

 
3. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A. VARIANCE REQUEST, TOBY BUECHNER OF TROY GYMNASTICS, 1921 
NORTHWOOD – A variance to install a 4’ fence from the front face of the building 
projecting 18’ into the front yard. The proposed fence would be set back 32’ from 
the front property line. Chapter 83 prohibits fences in the front yards of non-
residential properties. 
 
CHAPTER 83 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, KELLY COSGROVE, 5893 MARBLE – A variance to 
install a 6’ tall privacy fence from the side wall of the house projecting 6’ into the 
required front yard along Pearl. Chapter 83 limits fences in the front yard of this 
corner lot to 48” high and non-obscuring. 
 
CHAPTER 83 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, BRAD WARNER OF VALEO, INC., 150 STEPHENSON 
HIGHWAY – A variance to allow two additional wall signs each measuring 136 
square feet in area. 
 
CHAPTER 85.02.05 (C) (3) 

500 W. Big Beaver 
Troy, MI  48084 
(248) 524-3344 
www.troymi.gov 

planning@troymi.gov 

mailto:clerk@ci.troy.mi.us�
http://www.troymi.gov/�
mailto:planning@troymi.gov�


Building Code Board of Appeals  Page 2 
May 7, 2014 
 
 

NOTICE: People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-

mail at clerk@troymi.gov or by calling (248) 524-3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be 

made to make reasonable accommodations. 

 

D. VARIANCE REQUEST, LOGAN LESLIE, 6740 BARABEAU – A variance to 
install a 6’ privacy fence in the required front yard, setback 9’ from the property 
line along Barabeau. Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in this front yard to 
30”. 
 
CHAPTER 83 

 
E. VARIANCE REQUEST, NATHANIEL HOLMES, 1211 PLAYER – A variance to 

install a 6’ tall privacy fence in the required front yard along Hilmore. Chapter 83 
limits fences in the front yard of this corner lot to 48” high and non-obscuring. 
 
CHAPTER 83 

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
7. ADJOURNMENT 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MARCH 5, 2014 
 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on March 5, 2014 in the Lower Level Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present: 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Teresa Brooks 
Brian Kischnick 
 
Absent: 
Michael Carolan 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 

 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Moved by: Brooks 
Support by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the February 5, 2014 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Carolan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, WILLIAM J. SHORT FOR HURON SIGN COMPANY, 1650 

W MAPLE – A variance for relief of the Sign Code to replace the existing ground 
sign with a proposed ground sign measuring 99 square feet, set back four feet, eight 
inches (4’8”) from the Maple Road right-of-way line. Table 85.02.05 requires a 20 
foot minimum setback for the proposed 99 square foot sign. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reviewed the variance request.  He advised the Board the existing sign 
on the property was installed with a permit in 1995 at which time the property was 
zoned M-1 (Light Industrial). Mr. Grusnick said that later in 1995, the property was 
rezoned to B-3 (General Business) noting the Sign Code allows two (2) ground signs 
in the B-3 zoning district within a zero (0) to twenty (20) foot setback. Mr. Grusnick 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MARCH 5, 2014 
 
 

2 
 

said the Sign Code currently allows one ground sign at a maximum of 50 square feet 
in size and a second ground sign at a maximum of 36 square feet in size. Mr. 
Grusnick reported the department received no responses to the public hearing 
notices. 
 
Present were William Short of Huron Sign Company and Quentin Jeffries, 
representative of Belle Tire corporate office. 
 
Mr. Short said Belle Tire would like to replace the existing sign with a smaller sign in 
both height and width and install it on the existing poles and foundation. He indicated 
they are seeking relief from the required setback because new footings would require 
moving the existing landscaping and flagpole. In addition, Mr. Short said because the 
sign would be lower in height, the parked cars to the west would block the view of the 
sign from westbound Maple Road traffic. He addressed existing signs in the vicinity 
with similar setbacks. Mr. Short indicated the existing Belle Tire sign could remain 
because it is still functional. 
 
Mr. Jeffries said Belle Tire would like to replace the existing sign with the new standard 
corporate sign. He indicated that Belle Tire does not intend to install a second sign. 
 
Mr. Grusnick displayed pictures of neighboring signs from both the west and east views 
of Belle Tire. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Legally nonconforming sign(s). 
• Allowable sign dimensions. 
• Neighboring signs to west and east as relates to uniformity. 
• Compromise on dimensions/size to be more in uniform with neighboring signs. 
• Variances run with the property. 
 
Chair Dziurman opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Toby Buechner of Troy Gymnastics, 1600 W Maple, addressed concerns with the 
proposed sign blocking the sign for Troy Gymnastics. 
 
With no one else present who wished to speak, Chair Dziurman closed the floor for 
public comment. 
 
Moved by: Kischnick 
Support by: Brooks 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance request with the conditions that signage is 
limited to one (1) sign and limited up to 86 square feet in size, for the following 
reasons: 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT MARCH 5, 2014 
 
 

3 
 

1. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and 
intent of Chapter 85. 

2. The variance does not adversely affect properties in the immediate vicinity of the 
proposed sign. 

3. The petitioner has a hardship or practical difficulty resulting from the unusual 
characteristics of the property that precludes reasonable use of the property, 
more specifically because of the change in zoning. 

 
Yeas: All present (4) 
Absent: Carolan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
None. 

 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
None. 
 

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
Chair Dziurman addressed photo identification cards for Board members. 
 

7. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 3:27 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
  
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
 
 
 
  
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\2014\Draft\2014 03 05 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 





3. HEARING OF CASES 
 

A. VARIANCE REQUEST, TOBY BUECHNER OF TROY GYMNASTICS, 1921 
NORTHWOOD – A variance to install a 4’ fence from the front face of the building 
projecting 18’ into the front yard. The proposed fence would be set back 32’ from 
the front property line. Chapter 83 prohibits fences in the front yards of non-
residential properties. 
 
CHAPTER 83 

 















3. HEARING OF CASES 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, KELLY COSGROVE, 5893 MARBLE – A variance to 
install a 6’ tall privacy fence from the side wall of the house projecting 6’ into the 
required front yard along Pearl. Chapter 83 limits fences in the front yard of this 
corner lot to 48” high and non-obscuring. 

 
CHAPTER 83 



























3. HEARING OF CASES 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, BRAD WARNER OF VALEO, INC., 150 STEPHENSON 
HIGHWAY – A variance to allow two additional wall signs each measuring 136 
square feet in area. 
 
CHAPTER 85.02.05 (C) (3) 

 







 

1/2 
 

 
To: City of Troy Building Inspection Department – Planning Department 
 
Building Code Board of Appeals Application:  
Reasons for Appeal and Signs Details. 
 
Valeo has been certified by the Top Employer Institute as a 2014 Top Employer in the 
United States. Top Employer certification is awarded to organizations meeting the 
highest standards in human resources management based on criteria, such as benefits 
and working conditions, training and skills development, career development and 
culture management. 
 
This certification recognizes Valeo human resources management strategy, which 
supports the company objective to be an Employer of Choice in North America. Valeo 
strives to provide its team members with a diverse, inclusive and well-balanced place to 
work. 
 
To promote Valeo, attract and retain local talent, we would like to place exterior 
graphics on our headquarters building, on the East and West sides, facing I75 and 
Stephenson Highway (see virtualization next page). 
   
The Top Employer signs will have a positive impact on Valeo as well as on the local 
community.  They will maximize the benefits of the Top Employer label to attract new 
recruits and also stimulate employees’ pride.  In addition, the signs will support the City 
of Troy economic development by promoting a local employer of choice. 
 
Signs Details: 

 The signs be professionally applied and removed.   

 The signs will represent the 2014 Top employer USA logo, printed in red and 
white on vinyl.   

 The graphics will measure 8’H x 17’ L, and be installed on the third floor’s center 
glass windows, under the Valeo logo. 

 The exterior graphics will be temporary, as the Top Employer certification time 
frame is 2014. 

 They will not hide any other building, sign, billboard, thus not affect any property 
in the vicinity. 

 
  



2/2 
 

Valeo Building Top Employer Exterior Graphics Virtualization 
 
East side (facing I75): 
 

 
 
West side (facing Stephenson Highway): 
 

 
 









3. HEARING OF CASES 
 

D. VARIANCE REQUEST, LOGAN LESLIE, 6740 BARABEAU – A variance to install 
a 6’ privacy fence in the required front yard, setback 9’ from the property line along 
Barabeau. Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in this front yard to 30”. 
 
CHAPTER 83 
 

 







6740 Barabeau Fence Variance 
Prepared by Logan Leslie 

Plot Overview from City of Troy GIS (Accessed Online) 



6740 Barabeau Fence Variance 
Prepared by Logan Leslie 

40’ 

16’ 

Approx. Garage (not in GIS) 

9’ Distance to Property Line 

Current and Proposed 
Fence Outline 

• Current Fence (6’ Privacy 
Type) outlined in Blue 

• Proposed fence change in 
appeal outlined in Red 

• Fence would move 16’ 
toward west property line 
and allow approximately 
9’ distance to that 
property line.  

 

• While our address is 
Barabeau the primary 
entrance to the home is 
on Hartwig, and the 
fenced area is treated as 
our back yard.  



6740 Barabeau Fence Variance 
Prepared by Logan Leslie 

Supporting Justification 
• 6740 Barabeau lot layout from past changes has left the house tight against the south property line 

(6-8’ from the house in places) 

• Our family leads an outdoor lifestyle in the spring/summer/fall and enjoys daily use of our patio and 
back yard. With this in mind we would greatly appreciate some relief of the fence line on the west 
side of our patio (currently it is adjacent to the patio itself). 

• We own a large breed dog and spend time exercising and training her in our yard. Having more 
room for her to safely play off leash would make a huge difference.  

• While we were recently married, we are looking forward to starting a family. When we have 
children a larger fenced yard will provide a great area for our children to play and be involved in 
healthy outdoor activities.  

• Development of the lot behind us is not on the radar as indicated in conversation with the owner, 
our east neighbors at 1366 Hartwig, Dan and Stacey Latulippe, who are in support of our appeal for 
a fence change. They currently enjoy the use of that lot as an extension of their yard with their kids.  

• The neighbor across Barabeau (Sean Simpson, 6741 Barabeau) is the only property with a direct 
view of our fence is also in support of our appeal.  

• Currently the existing fence in the area of the proposed change is in the rough condition it was 
when we purchased our house in April 2013. The existing gate is missing with a temporary fence in 
its place. We believe incorporating a higher quality fence with better visual appeal would be an 
improvement for all affected parties.  



Surrounding Neighborhood View (Google Maps) 

6
7

4
0

 B
ar

ab
ea

u
 F

en
ce

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

P
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
Lo

ga
n

 L
es

lie
 



Changed Existing Fence (Blue) 
Proposed Fence (Red) 

Exisiting/Proposed Fence Layout Comparison – Google Maps Image 

40’ 

16’ 

 Plan has been discussed with both neighbors 
seen in this image and they have no objections  

6
7

4
0

 B
ar

ab
ea

u
 F

en
ce

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
 

P
re

p
ar

ed
 b

y 
Lo

ga
n

 L
es

lie
 



6740 Barabeau Fence Variance 
Prepared by Logan Leslie 

New Fence Style 

 

 

 

 

 

• New fence would be a 6’ semi-private wood fence similar in style 
to the picture above. 

• Old style fence would remain along the south and east property 
lines 



HEARING OF CASES 
 

E. VARIANCE REQUEST, NATHANIEL HOLMES, 1211 PLAYER – A 
variance to install a 6’ tall privacy fence in the required front yard along 
Hilmore. Chapter 83 limits fences in the front yard of this corner lot to 48” 
high and non-obscuring. 
 
CHAPTER 83 

 














	1. ROLL CALL
	2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	March 5, 2014

	3. HEARING OF CASES
	A. VARIANCE REQUEST, TOBY BUECHNER OF TROY GYMNASTICS, 1921 NORTHWOOD
	Application

	B. VARIANCE REQUEST, KELLY COSGROVE, 5893 MARBLE
	Application

	C. VARIANCE REQUEST, BRAD WARNER OF VALEO, INC., 150 STEPHENSON HIGHWAY
	Application

	D. VARIANCE REQUEST, LOGAN LESLIE, 6740 BARABEAU
	Application

	E. VARIANCE REQUEST, NATHANIEL HOLMES, 1211 PLAYER
	Application


	4. COMMUNICATIONS
	5. PUBLIC COMMENT
	6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS
	7. ADJOURNMENT



